NRL Memorandum Report 1950

# Analysis of the Failure of the AUTEC TOTO II Deep Sea Moor and the Performance of its Cathodic Protection System

R. E. GROOVER

Metallurgy Division

November 1968



Reproduced by the CLEARINGHOUSE for Federal Scientific & Technical Information Scringtield Va. 22151

קובוח חחי MAR 1 2 1969 近日日日レーン

42

Information Scringiteld Va. 22151 NAVAL RESEARCH LABORATORY

Washington, D.C.

This document has been approved for public releases and sale; its distribution is unlimited.

## CONTENTS

Abstract	ii
Problem Status	111
	777
INTRODUCTION	1
FAILURE OF THE MOOR	3
SALVAGE OF THE MOOR	3
EXAMINATION OF THE WIRE ROPE	5
Field Observations	5
Laboratory Observations	6
PERFORMANCE OF THE CATHODIC PROTECTION SYSTEM	9
SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS	11
A CKNOWLEDGMENT	14
REFERENCES	15

### ABSTRACT

This report contains background information on the design and installation of a wire rope three-point deep sea moor which was originally coated with a bituminous substance and the critical areas protected with a magnesium galvanic anode cathodic protection system designed by the Naval Research Laboratory. The report also describes the failure of the moor after 4 1/2 years' service and its subsequent salvage, and presents the results of a study of the corrosion pattern, proposes the cause of failure, and evaluates the performance of the cathodic protection system. Recommendations are presented for the protection of future moors and for possible research directed towards the understanding and prevention of failure of wire rope structures in sea water under conditions of static stress and of fatigue.

Three of the wire rope failures were associated with severe corrosion and the absence of bituminous In two of the failures the bituminous coating coating. was essentially absent but no severe corrosion was observed. There is some circumstantial evidence that the latter failures may have been caused by a ship mooring to the intermediate buoy which was not intended to be used for this purpose. All but one failure occurred 1350 to 2050 ft from the nearest active anode connections. One failure occurred 680 ft from an intended anode connection, but there is evidence that this particular anode was lost when the moor was installed. Some other major components of the moor probably received cathodic protection for as little as 9 to 12 months out of the approximate 54-months life of the moor. This was a result of a variety of problems associated with the replacement of the original anodes.

The results of the corrosive attack and the failure of the moor indicate that where long life is demanded for future moors the following steps should be taken:

(a) Provide a coating better than the bituminous substance used in the present moor.

ii

(b) Provide cathodic protection as a secondary defense against corrosion. It is essential that cathodic protection be considered early in the design phase and provided throughout the life of the moor if it is to be effective. Scheduled inspections and replacement of consumed anodes are essential for prolonged trouble-free life of the structure. Where adequate power is available, impressed current systems should be considered to obviate the necessity of frequent anode replacement.

#### STATUS

This completes one phase of the program; work on other phases is continuing.

#### AUTHORIZATION

NRL Froblem 63M04-02 Task No. S-4607-11894

#### INTRODUCTION

A fixed-position deep sea moor was needed by the Navy in conjunction with activities contemplated for the Tongue of the Ocean (TOTO) area.

A three-point moor, designated AUTEC TOTO II, was designed by the Bureau of Ships (now Naval Ship Systems Command) to meet the set requirements (1). The moor consisted of three legs positioned 120° apart. Each. leg was comprised of the center buoy, a main buoy, and an intermediate buoy. Approximately 11,000 ft of 1 1/4-in. 6x19 filler wire (WSC), extra improved plow stee?; galvanized, bituminous coated wire rope connected each main buoy to an anchor chain and anchor positioned on the sea floor. A 4,100-ft vertical riser beneath each intermediate buoy supported the wire rope between the main buoy and the anchor to form an upper and lower catenary. The risers were also 1 1/4-in.-diam wire rope except the upper 105 ft of each which consisted of 30 ft of 2 1/2-in. chain and 75 ft of 1 5/8-in.-diam wire rope. A schematic diagram showing the moor and a typical anchor leg is shown in Fig. 1.

After the moor design was completed and while materials were being procured, the Marine Corrosion Section of the Metallurgy Division, Naval Research Laboratory, was contacted concerning possible methods to extend the life of the moor beyond one to two years. NRL made an analysis of both the fundamental and operational aspects of providing cathodic protection to reduce corrosion on the AUTEC TOTO II moor (2,3,4). This analysis showed that it was not possible to protect the entire moor without a complete redesign (impractical), but that it would be possible to protect the critical junction points. and the wire  $\rightarrow pe$  for about 600 ft from these junction points. It also appeared possible to protect the wire rope to a distance of several hundred feet up from the anchors. As the best available protection without redesign, NRL proposed to protect the critical areas of the moor with magnesium galvanic anodes. The necessary materials and equipment were procured and assembled at NRL and were later delivered to the vessels which were to lay the moor.

On 26-30 May 1962, the moor was laid in about 5400 ft of water in the TOTO. The late Mr. L. J. Waldron of NRL supervised the attachment of approximately 4400 lb of magnesium anodes to the moor at the locations shown in Fig. 1.

All anode arrays near the surface were designed to facilitate periodic examination and replacement, which was expected to be required after one to two years.

In September 1964 (approximately 28 months after the moor was installed), one anode which had been removed from the moor was returned to NRL. Inspection showed that only the core remained, indicating that the magnesium had been completely consumed and that anode replacement was required. On 13 November 1964, NRL was authorized to procure replacement anodes, and by early April 1965 they were assembled and ready for shipment to TOTO. The David Taylor Model Basin (DTMB) (now the Naval Ship Research & Development Center, Carderock) negotiated the contract for the installation of the replacement anodes and apparently experienced difficulties in letting the contract. This difficulty, plus other factors, delayed the actual shipment of the anodes until 18 October 1965.

According to "Negotiated Contract" N167-173(X)FBM issued by DTMB for installation of the replacement anodes and executed by the contracting officer on 19 August 1965. NRL was to coordinate (or direct) the technical aspects of the contractor's performance and was to inspect (at TOTO) the supplies and services provided by the contractor to assure conformance with the contract. Because NRL was not notified of the installation of the replacement anodes on 17-19 November 1965, the technical direction and inspection by NRL during anode replacement was not accomplished.

From study of an informal written report dated 29 November 1965 by the U.S. Navy Officer who worked with the contractor and from telephone conversations with the same officer, NRL concluded that it was unlikely that the replacement anodes had been installed according to anticipated replacement design.

#### FAILURE OF THE MOOR

In November 1966, about 4 1/2 years after the moor was installed, the 4100-ft vertical riser between the intermediate buoy and the ring which joined the upper and lower catenaries on the 150° leg parted at an estimated distance of 1700 ft below the intermediate buoy, or about 1700 ft from the nearest anode connection (5). In February 1967 a 48 1/2-ft section of the failed end of the riser was recovered. Parts of the recovered riser were sent to the Naval Applied Science Laboratory (NASL), and a 1-ft section was delivered to NRL on 8 May 1967. The failed section was observed to be severely corroded and had undergone an appreciable loss in breaking strength (6).

A similar riser beneath the 270° leg intermediate buoy failed about four months later (March 1967). A tug towed the buoy and riser section to the Atlantic Undersea Test and Evaluation Center (AUTEC) on the western shore of TOTO where the section was beached on 3 May 1967. Preliminary failure analysis made at AUTEC by the author disclosed that the riser had failed about 2580 ft below the intermediate buoy, or about 1520 ft from the nearest anode connection, and it was observed that replacement anodes had not been properly installed (7). Numerous samples were cut from the riser for study in the laboratory; the results of the study are reported herein.

#### SALVAGE OF THE MOOR

The failure of the two risers and the subsequent shifting of position of the remaining buoys led to a decision to salvage the remnants of the moor to remove the existing hazard to navigation. A contract was awarded to the Merritt Chapman & Scott Corporation, and their ship, the MV CABLE, was dispatched from Key West, Florida, to TOTO on 8 July 1967. Captain Henry Halboth joined the ship at TOTO as Salvage Master. The author was also aboard the salvage ship to obtain information and samples from the moor required to analyze the corrosion damage and performance of the cathodic protection system. The CABLE arrived on site at 1240 hours on 10 July 1967 and moored to the main buoy on the 150° leg. All buoys except the 030° leg intermediate buoy were observed to lie in an approximate straight line bearing to the northwest. The first buoy to the northwest of the 150° leg main buoy was the center buoy, next the 030° leg main buoy, and last the 270° leg main buoy. The 030° leg intermediate buoy was far from the moor on a bearing of 352° from the 150° main buoy. The wind was from the east at 85°.

The position of the buoys indicated that the 030° anchor leg had failed, and the 030° main buoy had drifted into the span wire between the center buoy and the 270° leg main buoy. Later during the salvage operation it was discovered that both the upper and lower catenaries on the 030° leg had indeed failed, and the 030° intermediate buoy was adrift but was dragging about 700 ft of wire rope on the bottom thus slowing its rate of drift. The failure of the 030° leg apparently occurred prior to 12 May 1967 since on that date Naval Ship Engineering Center (NAVSEC) personnel observed that the buoys were in about the same relative position as reported above (8).

Salvage of the moor commenced on the afternoon of 11 July 1967. During the salvage operation, the following events occurred:

(a) The 270° lower catenary failed about 680 ft above the anchor chain. About 5950 ft of the upper catenary was on deck at the time, and the gage on the winch pulling on the catenaries indicated a stress on the rope of 39,000 lb before failure of the lower catenary which was reduced to 19,000 lb immediately after the failure. This indicates that the stress on the lower catenary at the point of failure was 20,000 lb when it failed.

(b) All remnants of the failed moor were salvaged except two anchors and anchor chains and part of the lower catenaries on the 030° and 270° legs.

Salvage was completed at 2220 hours on 20 July 1967.

#### EXAMINATION OF THE WIRE ROPE

#### Field Observations

The wire rope was observed visually as it was salvaged to determine the presence and location of broken wires and the appearance of the corrosion products. In addition, the wire rope was measured and tagged at preselected locations. Samples, were cut from these locations for study in the laboratory. The remnants of anodes were also recovered for further study. All hardware items were checked for corrosion.

No multiple broken wires were noted near the anode connection points except that in a few instances some multiple wire breaks were noted at socket connections. However, some of these wires at sockets were observed to break when the sockets came over the bow roller of the CABLE at an angle and under high stress.

Multiple broken wires and a failure of the wire rope occurred 680 ft from the lower anode connection on the 270° lower catenary. The wire rope was severely corroded at and above the point of failure (Fig. 2). All other multiple broken wires and failures were at least 1000 ft from the nearest anode connection. Field observations relative to broken wires are given in Table 1.

<u>.</u>2

The upper and lower catenaries on the 030° leg failed prior to salvage. Corrosion on the catenaries was not severe and is not believed to have been the cause of the failures. The 25-ft section of the upper catenary in which failure occurred had been twisted prior to failure. Color photographs are available at NRL (Code 6325) which show in detail the twist and failure. The lower catenary appeared to have kinked before or during failure (Fig. 3). It can be surmised that the 030° catenaries failed as a result of ships improperly mooring to the intermediate buoy rather than to the main buoy.

The 270° leg vertical riser failed about 2580 ft below the intermediate buoy. The appearance of the failed end is shown in Fig. 4.

The appearance of corrosion products on the wire rope components was generally gray-black near anode connections. Reddish-brown corrosion products gradually increased with distance from anode connections. At 1000-2000 ft from the anode connections about 100 percent of the visible wire surfaces were coated with reddish-brown corrosion products. The bulk of the corrosion products was located between adjacent strands. The density of the corrosion products appeared to increase with depth of water. This increase was particularly evident at depths greater than 2400 ft.

## Laboratory Observations

Numerous samples (3 ft or longer) were cut from the wire ropes at the locations shown in Table 1. The technique used in the laboratory to evaluate the samples was as follows:

(a) An outer strand about 18-in. long was removed from each wire rope sample. The core strand was also removed where failures had occurred.

(b) The presence and amount of bituminous coating on the strands was determined visually.

(c) The strands were soaked in mineral spirits, then rinsed in trichloroethylene to remove the biluminous coating.

(d) The cleaned strands were examined at 7X magnification under a stereo-microscope to estimate the percentage of the zinc coating still present. Hydiochloric acid (to cause hydrogen ebullition) was used as a further spot check on questionable areas. The same technique was used to estimate the percentage of zinc remaining on an individual outer wire from each strand.

(e) Alternate outer wires (six per strand) were removed from each strand, except that it was necessary to remove all (12) outer wires from core strands from the 030° leg because adjacent outer wires were of different diameters. This procedure is in contrast to that used for the cuter wires evaluated from other core strands, which had the same diameters.

(f) The removed outer wires and remaining wires in strands were recleaned in trichloroethylene. Corrosion products and zinc were then removed by immersing the wires in concentrated hydrochloric acid inhibited with 40 g/l antimony trioxide at room temperature. The wires were rinsed in water and coated with a rust-preventive compound.

(g) The inner wires of the strands were viewed at 7X magnification to determine the presence and extent of corrosion pits, and the remaining outer wires on the strands were checked for cracked wires and mechanical damage.

(h) The removed outer wires from the strands were viewed at 7X magnification to determine the presence of broken or cracked wires and mechanical damage. The minimum diameter of each outer wire was then determined to the nearest mil using a micrometer.

The results of the determination of minimum diameter of outer wires are shown in Table 1, together with the laboratory data concerning broken wires, pitting of inner wires, and the presence of mechanical damage. Table 1 relates these data to the approximate depth of water, distance from the nearest anode connection, total anode consumption, and field observations relative to broken wires.

The data show that broken wires were observed in the field on the 150° leg lower catenary, but none were found on the small laboratory samples removed from the catenary. Field and laboratory observations of broken wires were in good agreement in all other instances.

Mechanical damage noted in the table refers to slight plastic deformation of outer wires on strands. The damage was noted on the 150° upper and lower catenaries and the 270° upper catenary. The cause could not be determined.

The minimum diameter of outer wire data from Table 1 are plotted in Figs. 5, 7, and 9 and are related to the locations of anodes, approximate depth of water, and locations of wire rope failures.

Figure 5 shows that the average minimum diameter of outer wires from the upper catenaries ranged from 53 to 77 mil. The wires having smaller residual diameters were located about 1000 ft from the upper anodes, and those having larger residual diameters were at the lower ends of the catenaries near the 400-lb anode connections. The 030° leg upper catenary twisted and failed at the location shown in the figure. It is apparent that the point of failure was not associated with minimum wire diameter or the point of highest natural stress since both would be towards the upper end of the catenary. The appearance of failed ends of wires from the 030° leg upper catenary is shown in Fig. 6.

The average minimum diameter of the outer wires of the lower catenary ranged from 0 to 81 mil as shown in Fig. 7. The outer wires from the 270° lower catenary at the point of failure were completely severed by corrosion. Severe corrosion was also noted on the core strand of the 270° lower catenary at this point. Severe reduction of the diameter of the outer wires was not noted on the 030° lower catenary which failed or on the 150° lower catenary. This suggests that the 400-lb anode at the lower end of the 270° lower catenary was lost when the moor was laid and thus permitted severe corrosion to occur. Another significant factor which contributed to the severe corrosion of the 270° lower catenary was the relatively poor coverage of bituminous coating on the strands (Table 2). The appearance of failed ends of wires from the 030° leg lower catenary is shown in Fig. 8. The contrast in performance of the risers beneath the intermediate buoys of the 030° and 270° legs is shown in Fig. 9. Data from the failed 150° leg riser are not shown because samples were not available. It is evident from Fig. 9 that the diameters of outer wires from the 030° leg riser were not drastically reduced, but the opposite effect was noted for the 270° leg riser which failed because of severe corrosion. The only apparent explanation for the divergent behavior of risers is that the 030° leg riser was relatively well protected by the bituminous coating (Table 2). A cross section of the 270° leg riser approximately 50 ft above the failure is shown in Fig. 10, and the appearance of failed ends of wires from this riser is shown in Fig. 11.

Table 2 shows that the bituminous coating on the wire ropes ranged from 0 to 100 percent coverage. All failures of the wire ropes were associated with almost complete absence of bituminous coating. The variability of coverage by the bituminous coating suggests that either the wireropes were not uniformly coated during manufacture, or the coating leaked out of some sections of wire rope before the moor was laid. It was observed during salvage of the moor that the heat of the sun was sufficient to cause melting and leakage of the coating. Because the galvanizing is a sacrificial coating, the presence of zinc (galvanize) on strands and wires also ranged from 0 to 100 percent, with the higher percentage generally being associated with good coverage by the bituminous coating.

#### PERFORMANCE OF THE CATHODIC PROTECTION SYSTEM

The magnesium anode cathodic protection system was expected to do the following:

(a) Protect the moor at critical junctures where continuous rubbing of the surfaces might be expected to continuously remove corrosion products and thereby promote corrosion.

(b) Protect the wire rope to about 600 ft from the point of connection to the anodes provided the bituminous coating used on the wire rope met the minimal conditions used to specify a "very poor" coating. (c) Extend the service life of the moor beyond that of an unprotected moor.

The overall effectiveness of the cathodic protection system cannot be fully determined for reasons which will become apparent later in this report. However, we can report that:

(a) No severe corrosion of hardware was observed at critical junctures, although some broken wires were observed at sockets, probably caused by severe bending stresses during salvage.

(b) All but one of the wire rope failures occurred 1350 to 2050 ft from the nearest anode connection. One failure occurred 680 ft from an anode connection, but in this instance there is evidence that the anode near the failure was probably lost when the moor was laid.

(c) The life of the moor was  $4 \frac{1}{2}$  years.

The original anodes which were installed when the moor was laid - particularly those installed to protect the upper ends of the risers and the intermediate buoys were consumed more rapidly than anticipated. Calculations based on the rate of consumption of replacement ancdes at these locations indicate that the original three 60-1b anodes beneath each intermediate buoy were consumed within 9 to 12 months after the moor was laid. These and the other consumed anodes were not replaced until November 1965, or 30 to 33 months too lake to insure continuous effectiveness from the cathodic protection system. By this time the 400-1b anodes at the lower ends of the riser were probably consumed, and they were not replaced. From the post-mortem observations and calculations it appears that the failed risers were cathodically protected for only 9 to 12 months of their 54-month life.

There are strong indications that the November 1965 replacement of the consumed ancdes was accomplished by divers who apparently were not aware of the technical requirements of providing low resistance electrical contacts between the anode strings and the moor. This was evident from the fact that they looped the insulated conductors from the strings through shackles which they attached to the moor at convenient locations. Fortunately the insulation on the conductors broke under the weight of the anodes and a degree of electrical contact was established which permitted the anodes to function. The divers lost all 400-lb replacement anodes when they apparently allowed the anodes to free fall down the risers. This was evident from the fact that the sheared eyebolts (minus the 400-lb magnesium anodes) were located at the rings 115 ft below the intermediate buoys.

Since all available replacement anodes were salvaged, it was possible to obtain data concerning performance of the anodes which may be useful in future designs of cathodic protection systems for wire rope structures. One original 400-lb anode was also salvaged from the junction of the 150° lower catenary and the anchor chain. This anode is of particular interest because it functioned continuously for approximately five years at low temperature and high pressure at a depth of 5400 ft. The performance data for the ancdes are summarized in Table 3.

The estimated anode current densities ranged from 161 to over 550 ma/sq ft for the 120-1b anodes; the density was 445 ma/sq ft for the 400-1b anode. These current densities are based on the original surface area of the anodes and an assumed anode efficiency of 500 amp-hr/lb. The corrosion patterns developed on some of the anodes operating at various current densities are shown in Fig. 12.

#### SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS

1. A three-point wire rope deep sea moor was laid in the Tongue of the Ocean in 5400 ft of water on 26-30 May 1962. The moor was protected from corrosion by a bituminous coating and critical areas were protected with a magnesium galvanic anode cathodic protection system designed by NRL. The moor failed after about 4 1/2 years. It was then salvaged and samples of the wire rope and the anodes were obtained for a study of the cause of failure and the performance of the cathodic protection system.

2. Failure of two 1 1/4-in.-diam wire rope risers beneath the intermediate buoys and failure of the 270° lower catenary were associated with severe corrosion and the absence of bituminous coating on the wire ropes. Corrosion of the other lower catenaries was not severe which leads us to speculate that the anode was probably lost off the lower end of the 270° lower catenary when the moor was laid. Also, the coverage of the bituminous coating was better on the riser and catenaries which did not fail.

3. The failure of the 1 1/4-in.-diam wire rope upper and lower catenaries on the 030° leg was associated with twists and kinks in the catenaries rather than with severe corrosion. This suggests that these failures may have occurred as a result of a ship improperly mooring to the 030° leg intermediate buoy rather than to the main buoy.

4. The fractured ends of wires from the moor showed a variety of failure appearances. These included transverse, longitudinal, and diagonal cracking, and general corrosion. Research should be directed toward the understanding and prevention of the failure of wire rope in sea water under conditions of static stress and of fatigue.

5. A general reduction in the diameter of outer wires of the strands (other than core strands) was noted on all wire rope components. The diameter of outer wires from core strands was reduced at or near points of failure. The amount of reduction in the diameter of outer wires did not appear to be related to the depth of the water where the samples were obtained.

6. The coverage of bituminous coating on the wire ropes ranged from 0 to 100 percent indicating that the coating was either not uniformly applied during manufacture or leaked out of some sections before the moor was laid. During salvage, heat from the sun was observed to be sufficient to melt the coating. Since coatings should perform vital functions in protecting wire ropes, a more durable and protective coating should

be obtained or developed for future moors. To assure coating of outer wires, equipment should be developed as required to automatically apply a final coating to the wire rope as it passes from the ship into the water.

7. The magnesium anode cathodic protection system was expected to protect the moor at critical junctures, protect the wire rope for approximately 600 ft from anode connections, and extend the life of the moor. This study of the failed moor revealed that there was no apparent severe corrosion of hardware at critical junctures, although some broken wires were observed at sockets; all but one wire rope failure occurred at a distance of 1350 to 2050 ft from anode connections. There is evidence that in one failure (approximately 680 ft from an anode) the anode was probably lost when the moor was laid. The life of the moor was 4 1/2 years.

8. The true effectiveness of the cathodic protection system could not be fully determined because of its intermittent operation resulting from a variety of problems associated with the replacement of anodes after the original anodes were consumed. It was estimated that the risers which failed had cathodic protection for only 9 to 12 months out of this 54-month life because of these problems.

9. All available replacement anode strings were salvaged. One original 400-lb anode was salvaged. This anode operated continuously for 5.12 years at low temperature and high pressure at a depth of about 5400 ft. Data were obtained relative to the performance of these anodes which should be useful if the design of another galvanic anode system for a wire rope structure is required.

10. Cathodic protection should be considered early in the design of future deep sea moors, and attachment points for installing anodes should be provided at suitable intervals (probably not over 1,000 ft apart), or sheathing materials better than the bituminous coating must be applied to enable cathodic protection to work over a longer distance.

31. Cathodic protection systems on future moors should include scheduled inspections, and consumed anodes should be replaced in a timely manner so that the moor will not be without protection for long intervals as was the TOTO II moor.

12. The means for replacing consumed anodes should be provided in the initial design of future moors.

13. When consumed anodes are replaced on future moors, the installation of the replacement anodes should only be accomplished under the technical supervision of personnel who understand the critical requirements of the cathodic protection system.

#### A CKNOWLEDGMENT

The author is indebted to Captain Henry Halboth and Mr. Hilary Crusoe (now Captain) of the Merritt Chapman & Scott Corporation who patiently and understandingly assisted in obtaining wire rope samples during the salvage of the deep sea moor. The author is also indebted to Messrs. W. Lazier and Thomas Ford at NRL's Marine Corrosion Research Laboratory, Key West, Florida, for their assistance in certain phases of this study.

(Page 16 is Blank)

#### REFERENCES

- 1. "Deep Sea Moor TOTO II," NAVSHIPS Tech. News 16, No. 1, 35-38 (1967) January.
- 2. N.E. Peterson, "Theoretical Considerations in the Cathodic Protection of Wire Rope," NRL Memorandum Report 1301, April 1962. Naval Research Laboratory, Washington, D.C.
- 3. L.J. Waldron and M.H. Peterson, "Cathodic Protection of a Deep Sea Moor (AUTEC TOTO II)," NRL Memorandum Report 1338, July 1962. Naval Research Laboratory, Washington, D.C.
- 4. L.J. Waldron and M.H. Peterson, "Unique Cathodic Protection System for a Deep Sea Moor," Materials Protection 4, No. 8, 63-67 (1965) August.
- 5. John A. Rusling III, "Shipley Moor," A letter report from the Manager of Marine Engineering (AUTEC) to the Range Support Manager (AUTEC), 31 March 1967.
- 6. R.J. Wolfe, "AUTEC TOTO II Deep Sea Mooring Wire Rope Failure; Determination of Cause of Failure," A letter report from the Commanding Officer and Director of the U.S. Naval Applied Science Laboratory to the Commander, Naval Ship Engineering Center (Code 6135D), 23 May 1967.
- 7. R.E. Groover, "Preliminary Failure Analysis of the AUTEC TOTO II Deep Sea Moor," Technical Memorandum 6329-53, 14 June 1967. Naval Research Laboratory, Washington, D.C.
- 8. H.P. Shipley, "TOTO II Mooring Buoy Array (After Failure)," A Memorandum from Mr. Shipley, NAVSEC (6164E), to Dr.B. F. Brown, NRL (6320), 14 August 1968.

TABLE 1

A

ł,

RESULTS OF THE EVALUATION OF WIRE ROPE FROM THE TOTO II DEEP SEA MOOR AND RELATED DATA

Bom Field Umervallens	Trial (Theorem and 2014 2015 (Trial (Trial (Theorem 2014 2015 (Trial 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014	Ro brokon siros notad.	Willinie broken viret vere present mar uper actel Wu ere obserred (o breth than actel that ring the over bos relier of ahlp. Fo other broken viren noted.	Ke broken vires noied except at point of failure.	The second secon	Multiple broken virga mer (meta), floater frankenta (o 1200 fl from trac. Multiple trada virga from 150 fl from fallure).	lealerted bries burg and attried 1310 fit beles burg and continued to doto ft there will ple broken tree were moted mart the sector.	Pailed an entimated 1100 fl clampine intermediate buor d-1/2 parts after installation. To calivated except for one apeciam previously reported (references 4 and 5).	Xo broken sires noted.	The first fibrost we not a fibre fibrost we would fibrost interwed when a fibro the two the fibro fibrost $f_{12}$ and $f_{13}$ and $f$
Conuc Ander Conuc Pilon		400 340-474-834 400	00 <b>1</b>	400 (Freviourly Listed) Unhnorn (Roi 3si- vagrd)	400 (Frevioualy Listed) 286	(Previoualy Linted) Unhaowa (Xot Sal- vaged)	180-402-582 400 (Mrevioualy Listed)		180-306-486	486 (freelouely Listed)
	*******	** ** <b>;;;;;;;</b> **	* <b>!!</b> * <b>!!!!</b> *	XXXXX	2 <b>.</b>	******	****		××	********
PILLING RIGHT	****		******	****	****	*******	****		44	****
Broken Eroken	****	* *******	*****	***;;	****	××;;;;;;	***;;		ZX	*******
Typical Maximum	84 64 64 71/102 71/102	12 222222222	22232222	14 14 14 15 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17	****	222222	11111		58	
Dismeter of Outer Miniaum	5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	)7 <b>5585325</b> 325	823226922	74 70 83 82/88	23222	<b>3448</b> 500%	65369		22	965928332:
Cletance from Mearest Anode Connection (ft)	01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 01 0	8° 288888888	198888888 1988888888 198888888888888888	00000000000000000000000000000000000000	28889	10 1550 701 701 689 689	8011 190 10 10		40 92	123 223 223 223 223 223 223 223 223 223
Approximate Depth rf Water (ft)		<b>19</b> 228888668		888888 747 888888 888888 888888 8888888 8888888 8888	444 88888 88888	**************************************	1100 1100 1100 1100 1000		<b>9</b> 2	
Distance from Reference (ft)		2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 200	10000000000000000000000000000000000000		100000	2813 2813 2813 2813 2813 2813 2813 2813	21000		40 20 20	
Specimen Identification	1 4 4 4 4 4 4 5 5 5 4 - 5 1 1 5 - 5 5 1 5 5 5 5 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	<b>70 9593930</b> 888	*****	10 11 12-Fallure 12-Core	22588	31 27 30 30X 30X 30X-5allure 30X-Core	11 0 <b>6 1 1</b> 1		in the	u 4 2 2 4 8 2 2 1
Leg, Position, and Wire Rope Dismeter	000° Upper Catenery 1 1/4-18, diserter	130° Upper Catemary 1 1/4-ta, diameter	270° Upper Clearry 1 1/4-18. dismeter	030° Lover Catesary 3 1/4-18, diameter	130° Lover Crearry 1 1/4-14. dismeter	270° Lover Catenary 1 1/4-10. disaeter	030° Vertical Riser (Decenth Inter- mediate Bucy) 1 1/4-17, diameter	150° Vertical Riser (Beceth Inter- mediate Bucy) 1 1/4-1m. diameter	210° Yertical Alser (Beneath Inter- , wediate Buoy)	1 3/6-10 dimeter 210 Vertical Alaer (Bez-eth Inter- mediate Duy 1 1/4-10, diameter

17

(Page 18 is Blank)

. -

•

ç

¢

ì

B

both of failure.	Isolitate breats array a	Multiple broken wires mar eccent: isolated in Multiple to 1300 ff from film of broken wires from 1300 ff from Film to 2810 ff (point of failure).	Toolated broken vires started and solve buy and southwa to dup it there will be broken vires vere noted hear the acchei	Pailed an estimited 1100 (t beice the intermediate buo; 4-1/2 years after installation, constallated accept for own perclama previoualy reported (reference 4 and 3),	No broken vires noted.	LITAL (LINNAA) was holded [3] (1 LITAL (LINNAA) was also also also also also also also al		Xo broken vires noted.	Ko broken vires moled.		ko hroben vires miled.	ko broksa siros nolod.	
(Frevieweity Linted) Unknown (Not Sal- viged)	40% (Previouity Listed) <b>344</b>	400 (Freviouely Listed) Unknuwn (Mot Sal- veged)	180-402-582 *00 (Previouely Listed)		180+306-416	(774-100-17 1111-0) 1111-0)	(Srevioualy Listed)	340-225-595 896 (Proviouniy Liniod)	Set Set (Previouely	(Previewaly (Previewaly	(Ireviouel) Listed)	(Previoual) Liated)	se atrend) bes Link Link Link
****	x <b>.</b>	******	*****		X X	***************	ĸ	***	××	×	×	**	
	****	XXXXXXXXX	*****		**	**************************************	ĸ	***	<b>x x</b>	•	×	**	ris reformet. 
***	****	××,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	X X X		R #	××××××××××		***	××	x	×	¥.R	ace. Li bury at co tri bury at co trifteners. Li buran (cr co to determine dicated are re dicated are re dicated are re
. £ 1447	*****	555552	22222		88	2222222222222222222222	2	111	22	2	2	101	) reference. 10. 10. 10. 10. 10. 10. 10. 10. 10. 10.
62/88	23 85 17 8 1	4448608 4448608			22	9865278777777777777777777	2	232	55 52	2		50 57	trence. 5 the main bury at 10 pairs and mury at 10 matrix \$100 ft balls the stand of each first the ury growth at 0 wer vision to deter wer vision to deter wer vision to deter the stand of the 1050- the stand of
11100 11100 11100 11100	198851	10 1550 713 701 680 680	1 20 1940 140 10		÷.		10	200	10 2005	01	10	10	(Tauder plate on 1000 fr a main bury are relative to 10 the ring located 115 ft 10 the ring located 11
8888	444 8488 8888 8888 8888 8888 8888 8888	410 2228888888888888888888888888888888888	2108 2108 2108 2108 2108 2108 2108 2108		40 82		4100	<b>1</b> 11	115	115	\$11	\$6 5 7	res are relative to the rited, riser basedth th stearlise are relative atemptics are relative atemptics are relative at a strain at an are based by the relative and attend in the are and attend in the are and attend in the are and attend at the are are attend at the are attend attend at a strain attend at a strain attend at a strain attend attend at a strain attend at a are attend at a strain attend at a strain attend at a strain attend at a strain attend at a strain attend at a strain attend at a strain attend at a strain attend at a strain at
1000 11330 11350 11350	1000 1000 3400 3400	2817 2817 2817 2817 2817 2817 2817 2817	1200 1200 1200 1200 1200 1200 1200 1200		*** ***		4100	2000	101 2005	1000	10	50 50	they the spar s' liber the Oy <sup>20</sup> r liber the Oy <sup>20</sup> r liber the liber s' liber the structure structure structure the structure structure the structure structure structure structure structure to structure structure structure structure structure structure structure structure structure structure structure structure structure s
11 11 12-7a1lure 12-Core	38388	31 27 29 302 302-711100 302-600	18885		× A	34 44 54 54 54 54 54 75 76 100 111 111 111 111 111 111 111 111 11	55	5 R	42 36	•	Ąu	51 <sup>2</sup>	MOTESI 1. Distances 2. Distances 3. Distances 4. Distances 4. Distances 5. Distances 6. Within the 1. An and the 6. Million the 1. An and the 6. Million the 1. An and the 1. An
1 1/4-12. disseter	130° Lower Catemary 1 1/4-11. diameter	210° Lumer Catanty 1 1/4-10, diameter	10° Yeriical Riser (Beneath Inter- mediate Buoy) 1 1/4-in, diameter	150° Yertical Riser (Beneth Direr- mediar: Buoy) 1 1/4-1:, diameter	270° Vertical Riser (Benesth Inter- andiate Much)	1 William di Matter Constitut Autor Martino Autor 1 1 4-10. diamter 1 1 4-10. diamter		030° Spa Vire 1 1/4-im, diameter	150° Span Wire 1 1/4-im, diameter		270° Spam Tire I 1/4-im, diameter	030° Vertical Riser Beseath Main Ruoy 1 3/H-ia, dismeter	

TABLE 2

A

:

•

RESULTS OF THE EVALUATION OF BITUMINOUS COATING AND ZINC (GALVANIZE) ON WIRE ROPE FROM THE TOTO II DEEP SEA MOOR

	Virent	x 44xxxxxx43	**********	<b>6</b> 4 222256	+z+zz	X • • • •	XXXXX • X	2 • • • *		<b>6-6-</b>	<b>5-5-</b> 1
	Individual In Crevice O	FZ X0 II II IIII IIII	2×4×××××		JINX	=¥===	e Frfzz 12	2222 <b>2</b>		4.¥	72 72 72
	Stranded Out Crevice	* *************	+=++ + ++++ x+x+xx++xx	53 FFZZZ5FF3	[ <b>+</b> +zzı	2 24424	+zzzz 1	26662		× ×	××>
	zine un In Crevice	****	001001211001 1 1 1 2 0 01	K4472430K 1 64 64	*****	202 	+++zzzz	XX726-		4C 93	XXX 1111 FFF
	r Coaling randar Dut Cruvice	+ + + 2 + 2 + 2 + 2 + 2 + 2 + 2	3 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	7 % 7 × 444444	****	+ * *+***	+6    222222	x609X		22	***
ON ANTY	Bituminou on St In Crevice	6 920 66222 933362266999	7777777 777777 77777 77777 77777 77777 7777	7 9 XX 7 9 XX 7 9 XX	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	* *** * ***	のの !! エトトスススス	XXXXX		22 11 90	20 X X
	Specimen Identification	0 4 4 4-6076 4-6076 4-6076 4-6076 10 6-0016 10 9 9	985835	192222222	10 11 12-Failuro 12-Coro	100000	31 29 20 30X-Failure 30X-Core	2880 2810 2810 2810 2810 2810 2810 2810	None	1R 2R	2240 225
TWA TWA' ANT	Leg, Position, and Wire Rope Dismoter	030° Upper Catemary 1 1/4-in, diameter	150° Upper Catonary 1 1/4-in. diameter	270° Upper Catenary 1 1/4-in. diameter	030° Lower Catemary 1 1/4-in. diameter	150" Lover Catenary 1 1/4-in, diamoter	270° Lover Catonary 1 1/4-in. diamotor	030° Vertical Rimer (Beneath Intermediate Buoy) 1 1/4-in. diameter	150° Vortical Riser (Buneath Intermediate Buoy) 1 1/4-in. diameter	270° Vertical Rimer (Dencath Intermediato Duoy) 1 3/8-in. diameter	270° Vertical Rimor (Peneath Intermediate Buoy)
<b>V</b>											

19

i

i

. .

030° Lover Catenary 1 1/4-in. diameter	24 28 28 26 26 10 11 13-7 11 13-7 11 13-7 11 13-7 11 13-7 11 13-7 11 13-7 11 13-7 11 11 12-7 11 11 12-7 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11		* * !++=================================	5-2) x		x=== #= <b>%</b> ***	) 
150° Lovor Oxtenary 1 1/4-in. diametor	46080	7 777 7 777 7 777	+ 2+##2	**** •** •***	е +2(+Р2	27222	т " ХРХЖЖ
270° Lover Catenary 1 1/4-in, diamotor	31 27 29 202 202-7a1lure 302-69re	*** ** *** ***	Ff XXXXXX 1	+++zzzz	fzxz%% ;	€ • F±Fxx • x	*****
030° Vertical Rimer (Deneath Intermediate Nucy) 1 1/4-in, diameter	18320	X222X	2 <b>1</b> -422	XX25(-	<b>#</b> +++z	2222¥	x 44254
550° Vertical Rimer (Dongath Intermediate Ducy) I 1/4-In. diametor	None						
270° Versical Rimer (Boncath Intermediate Ducy) I 3/8-in, diameter	R S	77 11 22	<b>Z</b> Z	<b>E</b> 2	<b>Z Z</b>	11- <b>2</b>	<b>6-6-</b>
220° Veriscal Riser Cheneach Intermediate Buoy 1 1/4-in, diserter	28 28 28 28 28 29 28 28 28 28 28 28 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20	722 <sup>^</sup> ++++ 82222254 <b>32</b> ++++222222	xxxxxxxxxxxx +X +X+	XXXX X XX ++++x+x++xxxxxxxxx ++++x+x++xxxxxxxx	****************	******************	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
03.3° Bran Wire 1 1/4-in, diameter	9- E	* ±*	122	- ***	E et Z	zzz	ومز مو
130° 3pan ¥1r9 1 1/4-in. diamotor	40 40		zzz	7: - 7 7 - 7 7	43 	<b>7</b> 22	20 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
270° Span Wire 1 1/4-1n. diameter	4	¥•X	F	7 - C	84	x	8-1
050° Vertical Riger (beneath Main Rucy) 1 3/8-in. Ulameter	55	Xz	XX	св Х	FF 11 22	7. 7. 7.	×=++
OTTO:	rom each armalmen (ext 100" refera to the ere arroolat	and the core and	ent vas also rer ren aljozoni ali	oved from failed anda, In the en	1 01401000 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 0	at the presence	niime neulainid o Milme neulainid
X = X0 eoulin preen 7 = 7400 < 10 preen 8 = 81(8/k1 = 20 X = XXJEFEE = 70 X = Xery1 = 20	L 4 4044744 54447. 9044144 6474401 8044144 197441. 804744						
Multiple eyebele ini The first symbol in t	eale varjable degrees be group indicates the	of enverage eals presidentions cor	iling along the I	leelma.			
The N-second of sine (ealyanis The term "in eravice" and the	<ul> <li>en a strand frem et symbols used have the hist muser viras frem</li> </ul>	th sjoolinen (eli bine elgnifierin the interia vere		A VANTO FALLOU) 1. A Kate Ka. 2. 2	ved determinet F	r pierepeepie an the one elenit	g Eliamileol jugenia. Cestre de abitra tul
the pressure to any version to the term of the term " to fer a f	o the erevice formed b	etvein the Inlin	I had only vir	ALL ALLIEUN V	TO INTERIM IN	Ner virei in the	NYOM.

## (Page 20 is Blank)

. ~



## TABLE 3

## DETAILS OF PERFORMANCE OF MAGNESIUM ANODES FROM THE TOTO II DEEP SEA MOOR $\sqrt{1}$

~		Approximite Initial Weight	Finel Weight	Lana	Tatal Weight	Correct Dessity	to the Sear
Location on Mont	Laude Xa.	(25)	(157	(:>)	(25)	(mi/og IC)	()
Beneath Center	37-1 (22007)	130	71	49	225	236	8.1
Burr	-2	130	#2	28		175	
	-3	120	<b>H</b>	- 36		246	
		129	83	37		171	
	-5	129	85	- 25		361	
	-6	129	80	43		154	
Securation 030"	33-1 (Typer)	120	0	120	536	>550	15.6
mis Bury	-2	120	29	100			
-	-3	120	23				
	-	120	37	83		365	
	-5	129	48	72		332	
	-4	120	46	74		342	
Benesth 150"	II-1 (Cyper)	120	0	120	474	>550	16.4
Inta Borr	-2	170	28	102		465	
	ق-	230	51	69		318	
	-4	120	62	50		212	
	-5	120	61	50		272	
	-5	120	55	65			
Beneath 270"	34-1 ((79+7)	120	45	75	411	348	14.2
Bain Barr	-2	120	48	72		333	
	-3	120	50	70		325	
	-4	120	55	65		390	
	-5	120	53	67		309	
	-4	120		62		26	
Seams th ChO"	I-1 (Cyper)	120	37	81	403	374	13.9
Isternedists 3077	-2	123	50	70		323	
	-3	120	55	65		300	
	-4	120	64			256	
	-5	130	55	63		300	
	-4	120	54	66		304	
Besesth 150° Internediate Buoy	Not Salvaged	-	-	-	-	-	-
Benesth 270"	1 (5775)	120	60	60	306	315	12.1
Isternediate Booy	2	120	65	55		289	
-	3	120	74	46		242	
	4	120	73	47		247	
	5	120	71	49		258	
	3	120	69	51		258	
At the Junction of the 150° Lower Category and the Aschor Gain	63	400	12	384	386	445	4.3

30725:

All crigical 60-15 scoles were totally comment. All but one (see table) of the original 400-15 scoles were totally command encyt perhaps those at the junctions of the 030<sup>2</sup> and 270<sup>2</sup> lower teteneries with the andor chains (these andres were not selvaget). All selvaged scoles are included in the above table. Jepla-ment 400-15 andres are not included because they were lost at the time of replacement. Composition of scoles was to ML-A-21412.

Septement and/s were installed on 17-19 Ernster 1965 and were salvaged on 11-19 July 1967 (about 60% days [1.65 years] argosure) emert three branch the 270° intermediate body were salvaged on 3 May 1967 (about 530 days [1.85 years] ergosure).

.

The 200-15 sands at the junction of the 150° lower estenary and the anchor chain were salvaged after 5.12 years exposure.

3. The 122-15 replayment apples original discusions were 36 x 7 x 7 in., and the \$00-15 apples were 60 x 10 x 10 in.

4. Calculation of anode current density: (mm/sq ft)

C.D. =  $\frac{5 \times 10^5 \text{ W}}{8,760 \text{ TA}}$ 

Viere 5 x 10<sup>5</sup> assumed as-kr/lb produced by the anode
 V Vigth last by the anode (10)
 8,760 - Reader of hours in a year
 7 - Length of exposure (yr). To evals 1.15 for anodes beneath the 270° intermetiate buoy,
 1.65 for all other 120-lb anodes, and 5.12 for the 400-lb anode.
 A - Original surface area of the anode (og ft). "A" equals 7.5 for 120-lb anodes and 9.71 for the 400-lb anode.

5. Celculation of average current supplied to the moor; (Amp)

Current - 500 V.

500 - Assumi are br/lb produced by the saddes Mg - Total weight lost by the sadde(s) - (lbs) 8,760 and 7 are as defined in Note No. 4. 10000

NIL resistance was measured between each anode and its conductor mains a Model 260 Simraon meter.

21







Fig. 2 - Failure of the 270° leg lower catenary 680 ft from the nearest intended anode connection. The 400 lb anode was probably lost when the moor was laid (based on relative condition of other lower catenaries). (a) The failed end of the catenary. Many outor wires are missing.



والموالية والمحالية والمحالية والمحالية والمحالية والمحالية والمحالية والمحالية والمحالية والمحالية والمحالية

Sec. maharaman

Fig. 2 (continued) - Failure of the 270° leg lower catenary 680 ft from the nearest intended anode connection. The 400 lb anode was probably lost when the moor was laid (based on relative condition of other lower catenaries). (b) Severe corrosion of the wire rope 21 ft above the failure.





Fig. 4 - Failed end of the vertical riser 2580 ft below the 270° leg intermediate buoy or 1520 ft from nearest anode connection; severe corrosion was evident.

26

ż



Q





and the state of t

. .. .. . . . . . .

, . . .

-----

04 H Y

Ż

:

· · · · ·

A scheme

1

c

Emple seals seals

Fig. 8 - Failed ends of wire from the 030° lower catenary. The fracture appearance on individual wires varied and wire diameters were not severely reduced.



Fig. 9 - Minimum diameter of outer wires from the vertical risers beneath the intermediate buoys. Distances are relative to each intermediate buoy as zero.

i





Fig. 10 - Cross section of the  $270^{\circ}$  leg intermediate buoy riser approximately 50 ft above the failure. Note the general reduction in the diameter of the outer wires on all strands. White areas on the circumference of some individual wires are residual galvanizing (zinc). Etched with 1% Nital.





Fig. 11 - Failed ends of wires from the 270° leg intermediate buoy riser. Fracture appearance on individual wires varied and the diameter of some wires was severely reduced.



Tig. 12 - Corrosion patterns on individual magnesium anodes from the TOTO II deep sea moor. Anodes shown in (a) through (c) functioned for 1.65 years at a depth of approximately 200 ft. The anode shown in (d) functioned for 5.12 years at a depth of approximately 5400 ft. (a) Anode 34-6; estimated current density 286 ma/sq ft.



Fig. 12 (continued) - Corrosion patterns on individual magnesium anodes from the TOTO II deep sea moor. Anodes shown in (a) through (c) functioned for 1.65 years at a depth of approximately 200 ft. The anode shown in (d) functioned for 5.12 years at a depth of approxim ately 5400 ft. (b) Anode 33.6; estimated current density 342 ma/sq ft.



Fig. 12 (continued) - Corrosion patterns on individual magnesium anodes from the TOTO II deep sea moor. Anodes shown in (a) through (c) functioned for 1.65 years at a depth of approximately 200 ft. The anode shown in (d) functioned for 5.12 years at a depth of approximately 5400 ft. (c) Anode 33-2; estimated current density 461 ma/sq ft.

from the TOTO II deep sea moor. Anodes shown in (a) through (c) functioned for 1.65 years at a depth of approximately 200 ft. The anode shown in (d) functioned for 5.12 years at a depth of approximately 5400 ft. Fig. 12 (continued) - Corrosion patterns on individual magnesium anodes (d) Anode 60; estimated current density 445 ma/sq ft.

attent and a state

37

(Page 38 is Blank)

Security Classification			
DOCUMEN	T CONTROL DATA	- R & D t be entered when the	e overall report is classified)
ORIGINATING ACTIVITY (Correcte subor) Naval Research Laboratory		20. REPORT S	ECURITY CLASSIFICATION
INCLASSIFIED         Security Classification         Content of the static states of the body of states and information and be entired         * Content Time Activity (Consult states)         * NALLSIS OF THE FAILURE OF THE AUTEC TOTO II DEEP         PERFORMANCE OF ITS CATHODIC PROTECTION SYSTEM         * DESCRIPTIVE MOTES (Type of report and inclusive dates)         * DESCRIPTIVE MOTES (Type of report and inclusive dates)         * DESCRIPTIVE MOTES (Type of report and inclusive dates)         * DESCRIPTIVE MOTES (Type of report and inclusive dates)         * DESCRIPTIVE MOTES (Type of report and inclusive dates)         * DESCRIPTIVE MOTES (Type of report and inclusive dates)         * DESCRIPTION NOTES         * DESCRIPTION NOTES         * AUTHORNUL (FOLLANCE, DESCRIPTION OF PACE         * AUTORNUL (FOLLANCE, DESCRIPTION         * AUTORNUL (FOLLANCE, DESCRIPTION         * AUTORNUL (FOLLANCE, DESCRIPTION         * AUTORNUL	25. CROUP	······	
ACPORT TITLE ANALYSIS OF THE FAILURE OF THE PERFORMANCE OF ITS CATHODIC I	AUTEC TOTO I PROTECTION SY:	I DEEP SEA P STEM	MOOR AND THE
DESCRIPTIVE NOTES (Type of report and inclusive dates This completes one phase pf the progr	ram; work on othe	er phases is c	ontinuing.
AUTHORIS) (First name, middle initial, last name) R. E. Groover			
Noverber 1968	78. " OTAL 1	44	75. NO. OF REFS
A. CONTRACT OR GRANT NO.	28. ORIGINA	TOR'S REPORT NU	MBER(S)
<u>Муд-</u> у2 6. раојест но. 5. 4(107.11804	NRL 1	Semorandum 1	Report 1950
5- <del>1</del> 007-1103 <del>1</del>	25. OTHER I this repo	EPORT NOIS) (Any	other numbers that may be assigned
d.			
0. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT	·•		
This document has been approved for p	public release an	d sale; its dis	tribution is unlimited.
This document has been approved for p	public release and 12. SPONSOF Deep ( 6900 T	d sale; its dis Subscripting act Submergence a Visconsin Ave	tribution is unlimited. Systems Project nue
This document has been approved for p	public release and 12. SPONSOF Deep 5 6900 V Chevy	d sale; its dis Submergence i Visconsin Ave Chase, Maryl	tribution is unlimited. Systems Project nue land
This document has been approved for p	Deep formation on the was originally co	d sale; its dis Submergence a Visconsin Ave Chase, Maryl e design and in ated with a bi	tribution is unlimited. Systems Project nue land nstallation of a wire tuminous substance and
This document has been approved for p 	nformation on the was originally co	d sale; its dis Submergence a Visconsin Ave <u>Chase, Maryl</u> e design and in ated with a bi anode cathodi	tribution is unlimited. Systems Project nue land installation of a wire tuminous substance and ic protection system
This document has been approved for p 	nformation on the gnesium galvanic atory. The report	d sale; its dis Submergence i Visconsin Ave Chase, Maryl e design and in ated with a bi anode cathodi also describe	tribution is unlimited. Systems Project nue land nstallation of a wire tuminous substance and ic protection system es the failure of the moo e results of a study of
This document has been approved for p 	nformation on the was originally co gnesium galvanic atory. The report quent salvage, an use of failure, and	d sale; its dis Submergence a Visconsin Ave Chase, Maryl e design and in ated with a bi anode cathodi also describe id presents the l evaluates the	tribution is unlimited. Systems Project nue land nstallation of a wire tuminous substance and ic protection system es the failure of the moo e results of a study of e performance of the
This document has been approved for p 	nformation on the was originally co gnesium galvanic atory. The report quent salvage, an use of failure, and dations are prese ards the understa	d sale; its dis Submergence a Visconsin Ave Chase, Maryl e design and in ated with a bi anode cathodi also describe d presents the levaluates the ented for the p inding and pre	tribution is unlimited. Systems Project nue land nstallation of a wire tuminous substance and ic protection system es the failure of the moo e results of a study of e performance of the protection of future moo wention of failure of wir
This document has been approved for p 	nformation on the was originally co gnesium galvanic atory. The report quent salvage, an use of failure, and dations are prese ards the understa ditions of static	d sale; its dis Submergence a Visconsin Ave Chase, Maryl e design and in ated with a bi anode cathodi also describe d presents the d evaluates the ented for the p inding and pre- stress and of the	tribution is unlimited. Systems Project nue land installation of a wire tuminous substance and ic protection system es the failure of the moo e results of a study of e performance of the protection of future moon vention of failure of wir fatigue.
This document has been approved for p 	public release and Deep 6 6900 V Chevy Information on the was originally co gnesium galvanic atory. The report quent salvage, and dations are prese ards the understand ditions of static ere associated wi es the bituminous is some circums is some circums is some circums of 680 ft from an yas lost when the y received cathoo ths life of the mode	d sale; its dis Submergence a Visconsin Ave Chase, Maryl e design and in ated with a bi anode cathodi also describe d presents the l evaluates the ented for the p inding and pre- stress and of the th severe cor coating was of tantial eviden liate buoy whi to 2050 ft fro intended anode moor was ins lic protection or. This was a	tribution is unlimited.
This document has been approved for p 	public release and Deep ( 6900 V Chevy Information on the was originally co gnesium galvanic atory. The report quent salvage, and dations are prese ards the understand ditions of static ere associated wi es the bituminous is some circums is some circums ing to the intermed re occurred 1350 d 680 ft from an yas lost when the y received cathod the life of the mode ent of the original	d sale; its dis Submergence a Visconsin Ave <u>Chase, Maryl</u> e design and in ated with a bi anode cathodi also describe d presents the l evaluates the ented for the p inding and pre- stress and of a th severe cor coating was of tantial eviden liate buoy whi to 2050 ft fro intended anode moor was ins lic protection or. This was a l anodes.	tribution is unlimited.
This document has been approved for p SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES ANSTRACT This report contains background is rope three-point deep sea moor which the critical-areas protected with a may designed by the Naval Research Labora after 4 1/2 years service and its subset the corrosion pattern, proposes the cau cathodic protection system. Recomment and for possible research directed town rope structures in sea water under con Three of the wire rope failures we bituminous coating. In two of the failures severe corrosion was observed. There may have been caused by a ship mooring used for this purpose. All but one failure anode connections. One failure occurred is evidence that this particular anode we major components of the mocr probably months out of the approximate 54-month problems associated with the replacements D FORM 1473 (PAGE 1)	public release and Deep 6 6900 V Chevy Information on the was originally co gnesium galvanic atory. The report quent salvage, and dations are prese ards the understand ditions of static ere associated wi es the bituminous is some circums is some	d sale; its dis Submergence a Visconsin Ave Chase, Maryl e design and in ated with a bi anode cathodi also describe d presents the d evaluates the ented for the p inding and pre- stress and of a th severe cor coating was of thate buoy whi to 2050 ft fro intended anode moor was ins lic protection or. This was a l anodes.	tribution is unlimited.

والمستركين المركز والمستركين والمستركين والمستركين والمركز المراكز والمستركين والمعارية والمستركين والمركز والمستركين والمنافعا والمنافع والمنافعا والمنافع

.

Ì

ķ

ł

i.

ļ

2

مكافلا والمائين الملاد المكافئ

The transformer war the second second

1

Arring Carlo Balante

Sec. Sec.

Security Classification							
4	KEY WORDS	LIN	2 A	LIN	K B	LIN	кс
<u> </u>		ROLE	WT	ROLE	WT	ROLE	WT
_			1				
Deep sea moor							
AUTEC TOTO II moor							
Wire rope					-	•	
Corrosion							
			1				

The results of the corrosive attack and the failure of the moor indicate that where long life is demanded for future moors the following steps should be taken:

(a) Provide a coating better than the bituminous substance used in the present moor.
(b) Provide cathodic protection as a secondary defense against corrosion. It is essential that cathodic protection be considered early in the design phase and provided throughout the life of the moor if it is to be effective. Scheduled inspections and replacement of consumed anodes are essential for prolonged trouble-free life of the structure. Where adequate power is available, impressed current systems should be considered to obviate the necessity of frequent anode replacement.

UNCLASSIFIED Security Classification